ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE COVMUNI TY AND REG ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
May 8, 2007
3:36 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Donny O son, Chair

Senator Al bert Kookesh, Vice Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas

Senator Gary Stevens

Senat or Thonmas WAgoner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 20
Uging the United States Congress to intervene to elimnate or
reduce the planned parcel post and bypass nail rate increases
adopted by the United States Postal Service because of the
severe effect the rate increases will have on rural Al aska.

MOVED HIR 20 OUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 67(FIN) am

"An Act relating to a mandatory exenption from nunicipal
property taxes for certain college property, to a mandatory
exenption from nunicipal property taxes for residences of
certain widows or wdowers, and to optional exenptions from
muni ci pal property taxes for property of certain fraternal
organi zations and for certain residences of |aw enforcenent
officers; and providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HIR 20

SHORT TI TLE. BYPASS MAI L RATE | NCREASE
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) NELSON

04/ 25/ 07 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
04/ 25/ 07 (H STA

04/ 27/ 07 (H STA REFERRAL REMOVED

05/ 01/ 07 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

05/ 01/ 07 (H <Bi || Hearing Cancel ed>

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- May 8, 2007



05/ 02/ 07 (H RLS AT 5:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

05/ 02/ 07 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

05/ 02/ 07 (H M NUTE( RLS)

05/ 03/ 07 (H RLS RPT 4DP

05/ 03/ 07 (H DP: HARRI'S, SAMUELS, JOHNSON, COGHI LL
05/ 03/ 07 (H) TRANSM TTED TO ( S)

05/ 03/ 07 (H VERSI ON: HIR 20

05/ 04/ 07 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
05/ 04/ 07 (S) CRA

05/ 08/ 07 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

BILL: HB 67

SHORT TI TLE: MJUNI Cl PAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTI ONS
SPONSOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) GRUENBERG CHENAULT

01/ 16/ 07 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/5/07

01/ 16/ 07 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/ 16/ 07 (H CRA, FIN

02/ 06/ 07 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 06/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 06/ 07 (H M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 20/ 07 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 20/ 07 (H Moved CSHB 67(CRA) Qut of Conmmittee

02/ 20/ 07 (H M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 21/ 07 (H) CRA RPT CS(CRA) 7DP

02/ 21/ 07 (H DP: ClISSNA, DAHLSTROM  NEUMAN, OLSON,
SALMON, LEDQUX, FAI RCLOUGH

03/ 06/ 07 (H) FIN AT 1:30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

03/ 06/ 07 (H Heard & Held

03/ 06/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FI N)

04/ 10/ 07 (H) FIN AT 1:30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

04/ 10/ 07 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 11/ 07 (H FIN AT 1:30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

04/ 11/ 07 (H) Moved CSHB 67(FIN) Qut of Committee

04/ 11/ 07 (H M NUTE( FI N)

04/ 13/ 07 (H) FIN RPT CS(FIN) NT 1DP 6NR 3AM

04/ 13/ 07 (H DP: STOLTZE

04/ 13/ 07 (H NR: GARA, CRAWFORD, NEL SON, KELLY,
JOULE, MEYER

04/ 13/ 07 (H AM HAWKER, THOVAS, CHENAULT

05/ 02/ 07 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

05/ 02/ 07 (H) VERSI ON:' CSHB 67(FIN) AM

05/ 03/ 07 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

05/ 03/ 07 (S) CRA, FIN

05/ 08/ 07 (9 CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

W TNESS REG STER

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 2- May 8, 2007



KATE SANGSTER

Staff to Representative Mary Nel son

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HIR 20.

REPRESENTATI VE MAX GRUENBERG

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 67.

DR. DOUG.AS NORTH, President

Al aska Pacific University (APU)
Anchor age AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported HB 67.

STEVEN VAN SANT, State Assessor

Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity & Econom ¢ Devel opnent
Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comment ed on HB 67.

STEVE SM TH

Anchor age Pol i ce Departnent

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported HB 67.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR DONNY OLSON called the Senate Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:36:00 PM
Senators Kookesh, Stevens, dson, Thomas, and Wagoner were
present at the call to order.

HIR 20- BYPASS NMAI L RATE | NCREASE

3:36: 00 PM
CHAI R OLSON announced the considerati on of HIR 20.

KATE SANGSTER, staff to Representative Mary Nel son, sponsor of
HIR 20, said this resolution urges Congress to intervene to
elimnate or reduce the rate increase to bypass mail. The
increase goes into effect in rural Al aska on My 14, 2007 and
will increase overall fourth class parcel post rates by 30 to 60
percent. This increase will be reflected in bypass nail rates.

SENATOR THOVAS asked if the state gets any of the noney.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- May 8, 2007



M5. SANGSTER replied no; it is all federal.

CHAIR OLSON said bypass mail is a significant issue in his
district. He asked if local carriers support the increase.

3:38: 09 PM

M5. SANGSTER replied that the local carriers and the urban ones
that do nost of their shipping via bypass nmail to rural areas
have supported the request to intervene to reduce these rates.

CHAI R CLSON asked if it has support from any of the stores that
woul d be affected by the bypass mail increase.

M5. SANGSTER said there is a letter of support from AC
Conmrer ci al .

CHAI R OLSON asked if there was any opposition to the resolution.

M5. SANGSTER replied none that she had heard. They had been in
contact with Senator Steven's office, and his staff assured them
that this is a live issue and that they had no opposition to
this resolution - but no concrete answers either.

3:39: 08 PM

SENATOR STEVENS noved to report HIR 20 from conmittee wth
i ndi vidual recomrendations and attached fiscal note(s). There
bei ng no objection, the notion carried.

CSHB 67(FI N AM - MUNI Cl PAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTI ONS

3:39: 27 PM
CHAI R OLSON announced the consideration of HB 67. [Before the
commttee was CSHB 67(FIN). ]

REPRESENTATI VE MAX GRUENBERG sponsor of HB 67, said the bill
has several stand-alone provisions that deal wth rmunicipal
property tax exenptions that are quite inportant. He said
Section 1 deals wth nunicipal property tax exenptions for
private, non-profit, accredited colleges and universities.
Currently a nmandatory exenption exists for the University of
Alaska and its property even if it is inconme producing. HB 67
adds private universities to that law It also adds tax credits
for municipalities for contributions to private universities. He
said the issue was raised by Alaska Pacific University (APU)

whi ch has an office building in Anchorage that is occupied by a
spinal clinic. The bill applies to the underlying real estate of

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- May 8, 2007



the |easehold interest only. The nobney the university obtains
from the rent goes to support it. The spinal clinic staff are
adj unct professors at the university, and the students who are
taking health care administration classes actually go into the
spinal clinic as part of their studies.

3:42:22 PM
REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG said the second section adds a
provision for w dows/w dowers of disabled veterans until they

get remarried to the disabled veterans’ nandatory tax exenption.
The exenption is up to $150,000. He said the third provision is
an optional exenption for fraternal organizations that says the
muni ci pality nust adopt an ordinance that is ratified by the
| ocal voters. These fraternal organizations, particularly in
smal l er conmunities, provide the main neeting hall for social
functions and they also provide a |l ot of the social services.

3:43: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ai ned that Section 4 is designed to
allow a nmunicipality to pass an ordinance defining a high-crine
area and allow a peace officer who buys a hone in that high
crine area to get a property tax exenption. He said if his
district of Muntain View could get one or two officers living
there it would cut crinme and save noney and |ives.

3:44:58 PM

SENATOR WAGONER conmented that the sane issue also applies in
Sterling where there have been burglaries, but the population is
so spread out that neighborhood watch groups don't work. So he
supported it.

SENATOR STEVENS said he was once a borough nmayor and he would
feel nore confortable meking this an option for conmunities
rather than mandating that they do it. He asked why this piece
of legislation is needed and if nmunicipalities don't already
have the power to do it. He also raised the issue of who would
make up the tax shortfall that would result fromthe exenptions.

3:47:01 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG r esponded that | anguage on page 4, |ine
14, states the “the cop in the nei ghborhood” is [optional].

SENATOR STEVENS asked if nunicipalities can already do this.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said this is a very unusual part of

state law. To get a right to have a local property tax
exenption, state law requires that Title 28 has to be anended;

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- May 8, 2007



the Constitution says that “a legislature may, by law, permt a
| ocal ordinance.” This part of the law, AS 29.45, contains
several statutes that do not allow nunicipalities to nmake the
exenption wthout specific authorization. He said the “cop in
t he nei ghborhood” part is optional; the fraternal exenption in
Section 3 is also optional and woul d be by ordinance ratified by
| ocal voters. He said the feeling is that not many police wll
t ake advantage of the tax exenption and it is estimated to cost
only $2,200 a year per police officer -- a very nodest anount
considering what is at stake.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that the other provision on
educational property is mandatory already, but it puts private
universities on par with public universities. It was added in
the Finance Conmttee. The final provision, Section 2, dealing
with disabled vets was added on the floor of the House by the
speaker. The senior citizen and disabled veteran provision is
currently mandatory, and the bill just adds the w dow or w dower
until remarriage provision to that.

3:51: 36 PM
CHAIR OLSON asked if the w dow w dower has to be 65 years or
ol der.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG replied yes.

SENATOR KOOKESH asked the <cost of the <college and w dow
exenpti on.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG replied that the state assessor is on
t he phone.

3:52:45 PM
SENATOR STEVENS said the only colleges affected woul d be Shel don
Jackson and Al aska Pacific University.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG replied that Walen Baptist College is
a third one. There is one in dAennallen, but dennallen doesn't
charge property taxes.

SENATOR KOOKESH asked if he had seen the Al aska Muinicipal
League’s (AM.) letter in opposition.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the concerns in that letter go to
Sections 1 and 2 on colleges and w dows, an exenption he wanted
to remain nmandatory, because it would put colleges on an equa
playing field with universities so that students would have the

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- May 8, 2007



choice of good private colleges in Al aska. And, he reasoned, if
the state can keep its students in Alaska and offer a broad
range of good college prograns, it is to its benefit.

3:54:42 PM
SENATOR KOOKESH asked if he actually had a chance to talk to the
AML about this issue.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG replied that he hadn’t had a chance to
talk to them and that he had just received it today. It is a
valid point of view, but he hoped to keep the mnmandatory
exenption on its nerits. That is a policy call. But in this day
and age, nen cone back from overseas wounded and may not |ive
very long. They may |eave young famlies and little babies who
will have a tough time making it.

CHAIR COLSON suggested that he wait wuntil the AM. testifies
bef ore respondi ng further.

SENATOR STEVENS said he is very concerned about unfunded
mandates. If this is such a good idea, he thought the sponsor
should find a way to fund it through the state instead of
demanding that Sitka, for exanple, pay the tax for Sheldon
Jackson. That makes nore sense than forcing a small community to
pay a tax they m ght not choose to.

3:56: 22 PM

CHAI R OLSON said he doesn’'t see the connection between relieving
peopl e of property tax and increasing the nunber of students at
a private university.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG explained if you relieve them of the
property tax that nmeans nore noney wll go to support and
strengthen the university.

CHAI R OLSON commented that it’'s a theoretical idea.

SENATOR WAGONER nentioned that his and Senator Stevens’ boroughs
are second class and don't have police powers, but he thought
this could induce sone state police to go out into sone of those
areas. That’'s why he supported that portion of the bill.

3:57:51 PM

DR. DOUGLAS NORTH, President, Alaska Pacific University (APU)
said APU had the tax exenption for 47 vyears before it was
reinterpreted by the assessor's office tw years ago. The
muni ci pality now supports adding the nmandatory exenption to

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -7- May 8, 2007



accredited four-year colleges and universities. He said a letter
from Mayor Begi ch expressed support. He said it is inportant to
note that all of the revenue from the building goes to the
educational services that are provided by his non-profit
university, and there is a direct connection between the spina
clinic and APU s curriculumin health services adm ni stration.

DR. NORTH said Alaska Pacific University strives to nake itself
as self sufficient as possible. Tuition and fees cover about 60
percent of the cost of operations and any reduction in the
revenue neans it would be nore difficult for it to do what it
does now. It gives alnpbst $2 million a year in institutiona
aid, rmuch of which is passed on to Al aska students. Any
reduction sinply puts pressure on their ability to nake private
education nore affordable to residents of the state. From the
state’s point of view, every student who cones to APU is an
Al askan who is able to get the benefits of higher education
wi thout cost to the state; so it’s inportant for the state to
ook at it fromthat financial perspective as well.

4:01:41 PM

SENATOR STEVENS referenced a letter from Steve Van Sant, State
Assessor, which said one of the university's properties is not
used for educational purposes and is on the Mat-Su tax rolls.
The letter indicated that property would becone exenpt
regardl ess of its use because it belongs to APU, and anyone who
donates to APU would becone exenpt. Leased properties such as
the Al aska Spine Institute woul d al so be exenpt.

DR. NORTH replied that APU doesn’'t own the Mat-Su property which
consists of about 700 acres; it is held by a non-profit trust
that pays agricultural taxes on nost of the property. APU | eases
property from the trust, and only that small portion that is
used for education is tax exenpt.

4:04: 07 PM
SENATOR STEVENS asked about the Al aska Spine Institute.

DR. NORTH replied that the building belongs to APU and the
| ease-hold interest is still subject to tax by the municipality.
The building, itself, would not be taxed by the municipality -
as buildings of this sort haven't been taxed for 47 years.

SENATOR STEVENS asked him if the Cty of Anchorage could not
provide himwth this sort of freedomfromtaxes.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 8- May 8, 2007



DR. NORTH said the state thinks this is the cleanest way to do
it, because it levels the playing field between the universities
and colleges and it keeps the non-profits from formng a |ong
line seeking to get sonme kind of tax exenption as well.

SENATOR STEVENS asked about neking it optional, because the City
of Anchorage supports exenpting APU from t axes.

DR. NORTH that it would be a problem The nmunicipality doesn’'t
want it to be optional; it wants it to be state-wi de |egislation
dealing with four-year accredited regional wuniversities. It
woul d be nore problematic for them if they had to decide to do
it. They are in favor of the legislation as it is.

4:06: 07 PM
CHAIR OLSON said Myor Begich’'s letter indicated he didn't
object to it, but he didn’t sound exactly supportive either.

DR. NORTH said he interpreted that to nmean that it’'s okay wth
the municipality not to get this tax inconme, which it has not
received in the past and that it would |ike the exenption solved
on the state |evel.

SENATOR WAGONER said he had a great uncle who put all of his
noney in a trust to Wiitman College in Walla WValla. Witman
College is one of the best endowed colleges west of the
M ssissippi and it is one of the largest land holders in Walla
Walla County. The problem he has is this could grow into
endownents of property sonething like Witman College has and
take the property off the public tax rolls. Therefore, the
muni ci pality would automatically |ose larger amounts of incone
from productive land that is no |onger taxable. He wanted to do
some nore research on this happening in Al aska before he would
vote for this resolution

4:08: 22 PM

DR. NORTH said private universities can't make it on tuition
al one. He thought it was in the best interest of Al aska to have
strong private wuniversities and colleges, because it gives
options to citizens of the state. APU doesn’'t conpete with the
University of Al aska, because it can’t conpete unsubsidi zed, but
APU puts together high-quality progranms that serve the Al askans.
Many states understand that the non-property tax exenption for
private wuniversities helps the citizens of their state to
receive a high-quality education without cost to the state.

4:09: 57 PM

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -9- May 8, 2007



CHAI R OLSON turned the gavel over to Senator Stevens.

STEVEN VAN SANT, State Assessor, Departnent of Revenue (DOR)
said Dr. North is mstaken. APU has five small pieces of
recreational properties in the Mit-Su Borough (total value I|ess
than $50,000), and it has paid taxes on them since 1985. The
portions used for agriculture are closer to the Palnmer area. The
other issue APU has is the Alaska Spine Institute that Dr. North
stated had been exenpt for 47 years. “The fact is it shouldn’t
have been exenpt. Any property of any exenpt organization that’'s
not being used for the exenpt purpose should be on the
assessnent roll and should be taxed.” The assessor found that

the Alaska Spine Institute would be taxable - both |and and
buil dings — even under this bill. Existing statutes, as well as
this bill, require the exclusive use be nade to a property in

order to be exenpt and only one of the pieces qualifies.

MR. VAN SANT said the wi dow wi dowers issue is nore of a fix-it
amendnment. He explained that the disabled veteran exenption was
added after the senior citizen exenption, but the problem was
that they had to be 60 vyears old; however, nobst disabled
veterans are far below that age. So if the legislature wanted
wi dows/wi dowers to have the exenption upon the death of the
di sabl ed veteran, the age had to be lowered. It is not a new
i dea, but one that he has recommended for quite a while.

MR. VAN SANT said that typically his departnent does not support
exenptions sinply because assessors just don’t believe in them
The need for the tax does not go away sinply because of an
exenption; the burden gets shifted to sonebody else. The
Muni cipality of Anchorage supports the |aw enforcenent exenption
because it provides a good benefit and the section on fraterna
organi zations requires ratification by the voters.

4:15: 03 PM

SENATOR WAGONER said at one point UAA had its planning offices
in a building owed by APU He asked how tax liability is
calculated if only part of a building is rented.

MR. VAN SANT replied if APU |eases out any property for non-
educati ons purposes, that property would be subject to taxation.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if the exenption should be optional.
4:16: 56 PM

MR VAN SANT replied that npbst states exenpt educational
properties from tax. He said the difference between mandatory

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 10- May 8, 2007



and optional exenption froma nunicipality’'s point of viewis if
the state nmandatorily exenpts all university property regardl ess

of its wuse, that value is wthheld from the full value
determ nation, which the assessors determne each vyear for
educational purposes. If it is optional, that value wll be

added back into the full value so it would be used against the
muni ci pality for its 4 m| equival ency for education. The Mat-Su
Borough has small nunbers and it would not nake a difference,
but in Anchorage it anpbunts to $11 mllion to $13 mllion. Qut
of a $25 billion full value, that would nmake sone difference. It
woul d cost Anchorage tax payers a little nore if it were an
optional exenption conpared to a mandatory one.

4:18: 37 PM

STEVE SM TH, Anchorage Police Departnent, stated that they
supported HB 67 and believed if Anchorage used the optional
provision in Section 4 it would provide a nodest incentive for
officers to live in higher crinme neighborhoods. While he thought
their presence would probably have a chilling effect on sone of
the crinme and disorder, he didn't think many would avail
t hensel ves of that opportunity.

VERNON MARSHAL, Public Safety Enployees Association, supported
Section 4 of HB 67. It will allow a nunicipality to provide sone
tax incentive for an officer to relocate into a high crine area.

4:20:45 PM

SENATOR STEVENS said he would like to hear from the Gty of
Anchorage because, on a personal basis having been a borough
mayor, he had found nmandatory exenptions to be probl ematic.

SENATOR WAGONER said he would call the assessor in Walla Walla
to see howits exenption worked. He |iked the optional section.

SENATOR STEVENS said he would hold the bill over.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked what was said about the vote of
t he peopl e.

SENATOR STEVENS clarified that he said he would feel nore
confortable with an ordinance and ratification by the voters.
Sone issues in the bill require that and sone don’t, but he
t hought the public should have a chance to weigh in because they
are the ones who will pick up the tab for exenptions.

4:23:24 PM

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -11- May 8, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said not nmany police wll t ake
advantage of the exenption in Anchorage - naybe one or two.
Putting that small a nunber before the people for a vote m ght
be too cunbersone and expensive to nake it worthwhile. He asked
that this provision not be added to it.

SENATOR STEVENS said there were issues to further explore on HB
67, and he adjourned the neeting at 4:24:39 PM

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -12- May 8, 2007



